
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/12/2019 • Last updated: 07/15/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 15 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 02/2005 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2005 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School will provide a diverse student body with a rigorous education in a 

dynamic environment. Using a standards based curriculum, enriched with the Greek and Latin languages, 
and the classics woven throughout, students will engage in dialogue using the Socratic method to 

become critical thinkers. Students will become college and career ready and well prepared to succeed 

and contribute to the global community as responsible citizens. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 

Variable 2 

Variable 3 

1. A rigorous classical education that is rich in challenging
content  HCCS provides rigorous instruction in a classical
education model that uses standards based curriculum, 
didactic instruction, coaching, and intensive academic
support. HCCS blends the Paideia Model for instruction that
mixes the rigors of a classical education with inclusive
teaching and learning with the workshop model, which is
based on Howard Gardner’s theory of multiple intelligences
and Benjamin Bloom’s work regarding strategies to help
students engage in the highest levels of thinking i.e.
analysis, synthesis and evaluation. 

2. Supplementing instruction with classical study of the
Greek and Latin languages, as well as history, art and other
cultural and classical studies The Greek instruction 
program, which includes acquisition of the Greek language
and the study of Greek history and culture within a rigorous
academic model that includes the standards based 
curriculum, provides students with unique and outstanding
educational experiences that support their growth and
improve their competitiveness in the global economy. The
alignment of the Greek program curriculum with the ELA
curriculum ensures that the reading, writing and language
arts instruction in English and in Greek are complimentary. 

3. Preparing students for long term academic success HCCS
focuses on the mission of college and career readiness for
our students by helping them build habits of mind necessary
for long term academic success. We help our students and 
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Variable 4 

Variable 5 

Variable 6 

Variable 7 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

families understand the high school admissions process, as
well as college preparation, and other practices that support
them in preparing for, selecting and applying for entrance
into high quality high schools.
Following is a summary of progress in each of the three
essential questions that comprise the framework. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

www.hccs nys.org 

480 

480 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 

3 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	

	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	 	

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades Served 
at Site (K 5, 6 9,
etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

646 5TH AVE, 
Site 1 Brooklyn, NY 718 499 0957 NYC CSD 15 K 8 No 

11215 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Christina Tettonis 

Joy Petrakos 

Natasha Caban
Vargas 

Joy Petrakos 

Joy Petrakos 

Christina Tettonis 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109351647/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109351647/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

School Site 2 
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m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 2. 

Physical Address 

1641 Richmond Site 2 Avenue 

Phone Number 

718 499 0957 

etc.) 

NYC CSD 31 K 1 

m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Cathy Kakleas 

Joy Petrakos 

Joy Petrakos 

Joy Petrakos 

Joy Petrakos 

Christina Tettonis 

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone 

District/CSD Grades Served Receives Rental 
at Site (K 5, 6 9, Assistance for 

Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

K 1 

Email Address 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109351647/s65IeHxlLr/ 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109351647/bZoeZBX06f/ 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to Yes 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 

The school will serve 
498 students in each 
year, with
approximately 2
sections of 28 
students in each 
classroom in each 

1 
Change in Maximum
Approved Enrollment 

grade. We are
proposing this plan to
offer more 

October 1, 2018 May 6, 2019 

opportunities for
potential students to
enroll at HCCS, 
including increasing
the number of seats 
we have available for 
ELL students. 

The Hellenic Classical 
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2 

3 

Change in mission,
vision or philosophy 

Change in
organizational 
structure 

Charter School will 
provide a diverse
student body with a
rigorous education in
a dynamic
environment. Using a
standards based 
curriculum, enriched 
with the Greek and 
Latin languages, and
the classics woven 
throughout, students
will engage in
dialogue using the
Socratic method to 
become critical 
thinkers. Students 
will become college
and career ready and
well prepared to
succeed and 
contribute to the 
global
community as
responsible citizens. 

The two schools will 
share one Board of 
Trustees. Christina 
Tettonis, current 
Principal of HCCS PS,
will transition to the 
role of 
Superintendent for
both HCCS PS and 
HCCS SI. Mrs. 
Tettonis will split her
time between the 
two schools over the 
five year charter
period. 

October 1, 2018 May 6, 2019 

October 1, 2018 May 6, 2019 

4 
Change in
admissions/enrollme
nt policy 

Added ELL Set aside 
and Special
Education 
preferences. 

May 1, 2018 May 6, 2018 

5 

More revisions to add? No 

ATTESTATION 

8 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Joy Petrakos 

Position Chief of Operations 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/12 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/18/2019 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

NYCDOE Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

instid=800000058308&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke 

d=1&OverallStatus=1&section_1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMc 

omposite=1&EMgrowth=1&EMcompgrowth=1&EMelp=1&EMp 

rogress=1&EMchronic=1&EMpart=1&staffqual=1&expend=1& 

38ELA=1&38MATH=1&48SCI=1&regents=1&nyseslat=1&fedd 

ata=1 
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Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 07/15/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Each year, 75% of
kindergarten
students who were 
enrolled at the 
School on BEDS day
will perform at a
Level 1 on the rhyme
recognition, rhyme
generation, syllable
clapping, initial 
consonants, at a 
Level 2 on the final 
consonants, 
blending,
segmenting, ABC
recognition, writing,
spelling, decoding,
sight words, and
emergent reading
strands on the Spring
administration of the 
Fox in a Box early
literacy assessment. 

Each year, 75% of
the 1st grade
students who were 
enrolled on BEDS day 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Fox in a Box 
assessment was 
administered to 
kindergarten
students enrolled in 
the 2018 2019 
school year. 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

1 / 21 



	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	

2 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
3 

Academ 
ic Goal 
4 

Academ 
ic Goal 

for two consecutive 
years will perform at
or above a Level 4 on 
the spelling,
decoding,
vocabulary, and
reading
comprehension
strands of the Spring
administration of the 
Fox in a Box early
literacy assessment. 

Each year, 75% of
the 2nd grade
students who were 
enrolled on BEDS day
for two consecutive 
years will perform at
or above a Level 6 on 
the spelling,
decoding,
vocabulary, sight
words, reading
accuracy and reading
comprehension
strands on the Spring
administration of the 
Fox in a Box early
literacy assessment. 

Each year, students
in grades 2 through 8
who were enrolled in 
the school for at least 
two consecutive 
BEDS dates will 
average an NCE of 50
on the ITBS Reading
Test. 

Each year, students
in Grades 2 through
8 who were enrolled 
in the school for at 
least two consecutive 
BEDS dates will 
average an NCE of 50
on the ITBS Math 
Test. 

Fox in a Box 
assessment was 
administered to 1st Met grade students
enrolled in the 2018
2019 school year. 

Fox in a Box 
assessment was 
administered to 
second grade Met students enrolled in 
the 2018 2019 
school year. 

The Iowa Test of the 
Basic Skills (ITBS)
administered to 
students in grades 2 Met 
through 8 in the
Spring of 2018 and
2019. 

The Iowa Test of the 
Basic Skills (ITBS)
administered to Met students in grades 2
through 8 in the
Spring of 2018 2019. 

HCCS grade level
cohorts did not attain 

2 / 21 
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Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Each year, grade
levels cohorts of 
students (for Grades
2 and above) will
reduce by one half
the gap between
their average NCE in
the previous Spring
administration of the 
ITBS, a nationally
normed reading test,
and NCE of 50 (grade
level) in the current
Spring. If a grade
level cohorts exceeds 
an NCE of 50 in the 
previous year, the
cohort is expected to
show at least an 
increase in the 
current year. 

The Iowa Test of 
Basic Skills (ITBS)
administered to 
students in grades 2 Not Met 
through 8 in the
Spring of 2018 and
2019. 

this goal for the
2018 2019 school 
year in the area of
Reading on the ITBS.
Grade level cohorts 
were able to attain 
an NCE of 50 
however, grade level
cohorts were unable 
to attain the goal of
reducing by one half
the gap from the
previous year's
assessment. Our 
instructional 
practices and
approach to
instruction in ELA 
continue to focus on 
explicit vocabulary
development,
reading fluency and
reading
comprehension.
Small group
instruction continues 
to be a practice to
help support or
enhance student 
progress in the area
of reading and
writing . Through
interim and 
cumulative 
assessment results, 
instructional leaders 
and stakeholders 
analyze data, plan
and realign
instructional 
practices to support
the academic needs 
or trends revealed 
through data
analysis. Professional
Development is
integral to meeting
and addressing
student ELA progress
and the aligning
curriculum to address 
the current trends in 
data. HCCS has made 

3 / 21 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	

	
	 	
	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	 	

	
	
	

	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	

	
	 	 	

	

the decision to shift 
to NWEA assessment 
for our next charter 
term. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

Each year, grade
level cohorts of 
students (for Grades
2 and above) will
reduce by one half
the gap between
their average NCE in
the previous Spring
administration of the 
ITBS, a nationally
normed mathematics 
test, and NCE of 50 
(grade level) in the
current Spring. If a
grade level cohort
exceeds an NCE of 
50 in the previous
year, the cohort is
expected to show at
least an increase in 
the current year, 

The Iowa Test of 
Basic Skills (ITBS)
administered to 
students in grades 2 Not Met 
through 8 in the
Spring of 2018 and
2019. 

HCCS grade level
cohorts did not attain 
this goal for the
2018 2019 school 
year. Grade level
cohorts exceeded an 
average NCE of score
of 50 or above but 
were unable to attain 
the goal of reducing
the gap
by one half. Math
student proficiency
has increased 
throughout the
current charter term, 
however grade level
cohorts fall short of 
reducing the gap
from year to year.
HCCS consistency
makes instructional 
shifts according to
trends revealed 
through data
analysis. Instructional
practices such as
integrating
technology with
interactive math 
programs and
project based
learning in math
remain a focus. Small 
group instruction in
math are structured 
where teachers or 
academic service 
providers explicitly
teach strategies,
math academic 
vocabulary, preview
upcoming lessons
and building
student's 
mathematical fluency
to ensure they are
meeting individual 
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student needs. HCCS 
has made the 
decision to shift to 
NWEA assessment for 
our next charter 
term. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Greek Proficiency
Goals: 
Kindergarten: By the
end of the school 
year, students who
were enrolled on 
BEDS days:
75% of the students 
will be able to 
recognize all Greek
Letters in their print
form, as measured 
by a Greek Letter
Recognition and
Writing Common
Assessment. 
75% of the students 
will be able to 
communicate 
verbally as measured
by the HCCS Greek
Verbal Common 
Assessment. 

First Grade: 
By the end of the
school year, students
who were enrolled on 
BEDS day for at least
two consecutive 
years:
75% of students will 
be able to write all 
the Greek alphabet in
print, as measured
by a Greek Letter
Recognition and
Writing Common
Assessment. 
75% of students will 
perform proficiently
in listening, as
measured by the
HCCS Greek 
Listening Common
Assessment. 
75% of students will 

The HCCS Greek 
Assessments in 
Letter Recognition,
Writing and Verbal Met Common Assessment 
administered to 
students in 
Kindergarten. 

The HCCS Greek 
Assessments in 
Letter Recognition,
Writing, Listening,
Reading and Verbal
Common Met 
Assessments 
administered to 
students in grade 1
for the 2018 2019 

5 / 21 
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school year. 
in reading, as
measured by the
HCCS Greek Reading
Common 
Assessment. 
75% of the students 
will be able to 
communicate 
verbally as measured
by the HCCS Greek
Verbal Common 
Assessment. 

perform proficiently

Second through
Seventh Grades: By
the end of school 
year, students who
were enrolled on The HCCS Greek 

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

BEDS day for at least
two consecutive 
years:
75% of students will 
perform proficiently
in oral, reading,
listening and writing
skill, as measured by
the HCCS Greek 
Verbal, Reading,
Listening, and
Writing Common
Assessments. 

Verbal, Reading,
Listening and Writing
Common 
Assessments to 
administered to 
students in grades 2
through 7 for the
2018 2019 school 
year. 

Met 

2. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

Yes 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Eighth Grade:
Each year, 100% of 

HCCS administration 
and Greek teachers 
continue to revise the 
process and course
outline for students 
who are eligible for
the Greek regent. 
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11 

HCCS Grade 8 The effort to increase 

Academ 
ic Goal 

students who have 
been recommended 
by the Greek
department to sit for
the NYSED High
School Regents exam
will pass the Greek
Regent Exam with an
average passing
score of at least 75%. 

Throughout the
charter term, each 

NYSED High School
Greek Regent Exam Not Met 
(LOTE) 

student proficiency in
the Greek language
is still addressed 
through our Greek
enrichment program
offered to grades 5
through 8 for
students who may be
eligible to take the
regent in June.
Results for the regent
indicate that students 
require additional
support in the area of
writing. 

HCCS did not attain 
this goal for the 2019
administration of the 
NYS ELA examination 
despite
demonstrating
growth throughout
the charter term. 
Administration 
alongside
instructional coaches 
have disseminated 
the ELA results, item 
skills analysis and
instructional reports.
Overall, the grades
tested demonstrated 
a decrease in the 
acquisition of specific
ELA skills such as 
inferring and
identifying author's
purpose. The focus
and shift of our 
current instructional 
practices for this
school year, is
stronger emphasis on
explicit academic
vocabulary
throughout all 
content areas. 
Increased frequency
of read alouds during
reading workshops, in
addition to increased 
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12 

Academ 
ic Goal 

grade level cohort of
HCCS students will 
reduce by one
quarter, the gap
between the percent
at or above Level 3 
on the previous
year's NYS ELA exam
and 75% at or above 
Level 3 on the 
current year's NYS
ELA exam 

NYSED ELA 
examination 
administered to Not Met 
students in grades 3
8 

frequency in students
independently
reading. Students are
assessed more 
frequently with the
focus on 
comprehension of
reading passages and
fluency. Academic
Intervention 
specialists and
Special Education
teachers are 
supporting our at risk
students and 
focusing on the
specific ELA skills
such as vocabulary
development and
inferring to increase
overall reading
comprehension. The
instructional 
practices of shared
reading and writing
have proven to help
support all levels of
readers and writers. 
As teachers explicitly
model their reading,
thinking and writing
skills, students are 
receiving specific
strategies that will
help refine student
independent reading
and writing skills.
HCCS is confident 
that students will 
demonstrate an 
increase in student 
ELA proficiency in the
upcoming
examination. 

Throughout the
charter term, each 
grade level cohort of
HCCS students will 
reduce by one NYSED Math quarter, the gapAcadem examination between the percent 
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13 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
14 

Academ 
ic Goal 
15 

at or above Level 3 
on the previous
year's NYS Math
exam and 75% at or 
above Level 3 on the 
current year's NYS
Math exam. 

Each year, the
percent of HCCS
students performing
at or above Level 3 
on the NYS ELA exam 
in each tested grade
will, in the majority of
grades, exceed the
average performance
of students tested in 
the same grades of
CSD 15. 

Each year, the
percent of HCCS
students performing
at or above Level 3 
on the NYS Math 
exam in each tested 
grade will, in the
majority of grades,
exceed the average
performance of
students tested in 
the same grades of
CSD 15. 

administered to 
students in grades 3
8. 

NYSED ELA 
examination 

NYSED Math 
examination 

Met 

Met 

Met 
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HCCS did not attain 
this goal for the 2019
administration of the 
NYS ELA 
examination. 
Administration 
alongside
instructional coaches 
have disseminated 
the ELA results, item 
skills analysis and
instructional reports.
Overall, the grades
tested demonstrated 
a decrease in the 
acquisition of specific
ELA skills such as 



	 	

	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	
	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	
	
	 	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	

Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

Throughout the
course of the charter 
term, HCCS will show 
progress towards
achieving 75% of its
3rd through 8th
graders, who have
been enrolled at the 
school at least two 
consecutive years,
performing at or
above a Level 3 on 
the NYS ELA exam. 

NYSED ELA Not Met examination 

inferring and
identifying author's
purpose. The focus
and shift of our 
current instructional 
practices for this
school year, is
stronger emphasis on
explicit academic
vocabulary
throughout all 
content areas. 
Increased frequency
of read alouds during
reading workshops, in
addition to increased 
frequency in students
independently
reading. Students are
assessed more 
frequently with the
focus on 
comprehension of
reading passages and
fluency. Academic
Intervention 
specialists and
Special Education
teachers are 
supporting our at risk
students and 
focusing on the
specific ELA skills
such as vocabulary
development and
inferring to increase
overall reading
comprehension. The
instructional 
practices of shared
reading and writing
have proven to help
support all levels of
readers and writers. 
As teachers explicitly
model their reading,
thinking and writing
skills, students are 
receiving specific
strategies that will
help refine student
independent reading
and writing skills. 

10 / 21 



	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	

	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	
	 	 	

	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

HCCS is confident 
that students will 
demonstrate an 
increase in student 
ELA proficiency in the
upcoming
examination. 

HCCS had 90% of 
students who were 
administered the 
2019 Earth Science 
regent passed and
67% of students 
attained a score of 
75% or above. 
Results indicate 

Academ 
ic Goal 
17 

Academ 
ic Goal 
18 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

Throughout the
course of the charter 
term, HCCS will show 
progress towards
achieving 75% of its
3rd through 8th
graders, who have
been enrolled at the 
school at least two 
consecutive years,
performing at or
above Level 3 on the 
NYS Math exam 

Throughout the
course of the charter 
term, HCCS will show 
progress towards
achieving 75% of its
4th and 8th graders
who have been 
enrolled at the school 
on BEDS day for at
least two consecutive 
years, performing at
or above a Level 3 on 
the NYS Science 
exam. 

Each year, 75% of
the Grade 8 students 
who have taken 
Algebra I Regent
exam with an 
average passing
score of at least 75% 

NYSED Math Met examination 

NYS Science 
examination 
administered to Met 
students in grade 4
and 8. 

NYS Algebra I Regent
administered to Met 
students in grade 8 

11 / 21 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	
	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	

	

	

20 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Each year, 75% of
Grade 8 students 
who are 
recommended by the
Science department
to sit for the NYS 
Earth Science Regent
Exam will pass the
Regent exam with an
average passing
score of at least 75% 

NYS Earth Science 
Regent administered Not Met to students in grade
8 

students performed
well in the 
performance section
of the Earth Science 
regent. The
written/multiple
choice section prove
to be an area of 
focus. This indicates 
to all stakeholders 
that the realignment
of the Earth Science 
curriculum needs to 
specifically address
this part of the exam.
Instructional 
strategies such as
deep driving into
regent questions and
increasing scientific
vocabulary may be
essential to 
increasing student
proficiency on this
examination. 

3. Do have more academic goals Yes 

to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Academ 
ic Goal 
21 

AYP: 
Each year, the School
will be deemed "In 
Good Standing" on
the NYS Report Cartd 

NYSED School Report
Card 

Met 

Academ 
ic Goal 
22 

Academ 
ic Goal 
23 

Academ 
ic Goal 
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24 

Academ 
ic Goal 
25 

Academ 
ic Goal 
26 

Academ 
ic Goal 
27 

Academ 
ic Goal 
28 

Academ 
ic Goal 
29 

Academ 
ic Goal 
30 

Academ 
ic Goal 
31 

Academ 
ic Goal 
32 

Academ 
ic Goal 
33 

Academ 
ic Goal 
34 

Academ 
ic Goal 
35 

Academ 
ic Goal 
36 

Academ 
ic Goal 
37 

Academ 
ic Goal 
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38 

Academ 
ic Goal 
39 

Academ 
ic Goal 
40 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal 

Each year, the school
will have an averageOrg daily studentGoal 1 attendance rate of at 
least 95 percent. 

Each year, 95
percent of all
students enrolled on Org the last day of theGoal 2 school year will
return the following 
year. 

Each year, 90
percent of all
instructional staff 

Org employed during the
Goal 3 prior school year will

return and/or be
asked to return the 
following school year. 

Each year, parents
will express
satisfaction with 
HCCS’ program,
based on the 
NYCDOE School 
Survey in which the
school will receive 
scores of 7.5 or 
higher in each of theOrg four survey domains: Goal 4 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

ATS 

HCCS had an 
average daily
attendance rate of 
96.4. 

ATS Discharge Report
ATS Roster 

NYSED TEACH 

BEDS Report 

Quickbooks 
Accounting & HR 

NYC DOE Survey 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Met 

Met 

Met 

Met 
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Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Academic 
Expectations,
Communication, 
Engagement, and
Safety and Respect.
The school will only
have met this goal if
at least 50% of the 
parents participate in
the survey. 

Each year, teachers
will express
satisfaction with 
HCCS’ leadership and
professional
development
opportunities, based
on the NYCDOE 
School Survey in
which the school will 
receive scores of 7.5 
or higher in each of
the four survey
domains: Academic 
Expectations,
Communication, 
Engagement, and
Safety and Respect.
The school will only
have met this goal if
at least 50% of the 
teachers participate
in the survey. 

Each year, students
in grades 5 through 8
will express
satisfaction with 
HCCS’ staff and 
programs, based on
the NYCDOE School 
Survey in which the
school will receive 
scores of 7.5 or 
higher in each of the
four survey domains:
Academic 
Expectations,
Communication, 
Engagement, and
Safety and Respect.
The school will only 

NYC DOE Survey Met 

NYC DOE Survey Met 
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have met this goal if
at least 50% or more 
of the students 
participate in the 
survey. 

Org
Goal 7 

Each year, student
enrollment will be 
within 15% of full 
enrollment as 
defined in the HCCS’ 
charter contract. This 
will be analyzed
annually and
monitored bi
monthly. 

ATS and The NYC 
DOE Charter School Met 
Vendor Portal 

HCCS's 
demographics are a
clear reflection of 
their outreach to 
District 15. Our 
diverse student body
proves that our
efforts to recruit 
ELL’s is successful. 
66% of our ELL 
population are of
Hispanic origin. Our
Hispanic incoming
population has
increased every year.
This is an example of
integration over the
last charter term. 
HCCS continues to 
exemplify equity.
HCCS was featured in 
the Center of NYC 
Affairs publication,
INTEGRATED 
SCHOOLS IN A 
SEGREGATED CITY: 
Ten strategies that
have made New York 
City elementary
schools more 
diverse. HCCS is 
listed as a replicable
model for other 
schools throughout
the city under
strategy #9 "create 
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Org
Goal 8 

• Per the 2010 
amendment to the 
Charter Schools Act, 
HCCS shall 
demonstrate good
faith efforts to 
attract, retain and 
meet or exceed 
enrollment and 
retention targets as
prescribed by the
Board of Regents,
through the State
Education 
Department, of
students with 
disabilities, English
language learners,
and students who are 
eligible for the free
and reduced price
lunch program. 

alternative schools 
with diversity as a
mission". p. 21
https://static1.square
space.com/static/53e
e4f0be4b015b9c369 
0d84/t/5812567b15d
5db0f1068e667/1477
596798462/Integrate
d+Schools+in+a+Se 
gregated+City.pdf
HCCS was mentioned 
as a school of 
integration in Politico.
https://www.politico.c
om/states/new
york/city
hall/story/2016/10/so
me city schools
serve as models of
integration study
finds 106725 
HCCS has been 
nominated as a Blue 
Ribbon School. See 
attached. 
HCCS has been 
designated as a
Reward School for 
four consecutive 
years,
(2015.2016.2017.201
8) and a Recognition
School in 2019. 
HCCS was 
encouraged and
asked to replicate
their exemplar model Met 
by The NYC DOE and
NYSED numerous 
times. HCCS applied
for a replication and
was approved a
second charter by
The NYS Board of 
Regents on
December 11, 2018. 
The new charter 
school named 
Hellenic Classical 
Charter School  
Staten Island is 
scheduled to open 
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September 2019 in
NYC’s District 31. 
HCCS’s BOT 
approved an ELL
preference for its
Lottery Policy in
2015. 
HCCS will set aside 
for ELL’s after 
siblings in school
year 2019 2020.
HCCS will add a 
preference for SWD.
HCCS continues to 
have HIGH retention 
rates of 95% and 
above. 
HCCS backfills in all 
grades should a seat
become available. 
During the current
school year. October
2018, HCCS enrolled 
3 ELL students in 
grades K, 1 & 2.
HCCS requested for
an enrollment 
increase for new 
ELL’s. This increase 
was approved by the
DOE during the
current renewal. 
HCCS was a two time 
recipient of NYSED’s
Dissemination Grant. 
The purpose of this
grant was to share
our best practices
with failing district
public schools.
In an effort to 
achieve racial equity
in our school we are 
members of the 
Diverse Charter 
School Coalition and 
The NYC DOE District 
Charter 
Collaborative. 
HCCS is a member of 
NYC Charter Center’s 
ELL and Special
Education 
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Consortium. 
HCCS is aTitle 1 
school. 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

• Each year, HCCS
will comply with all
applicable laws,
rules, regulations,
and contract terms 
including, but not
limited to, the New 
York Charter Schools 
Act, the New York 
Freedom of 
Information Law, the 
New York Open
Meetings Law, the
federal Individuals 
with Disabilities 
Education Act, and 
federal Family
Educational Rights
and Privacy Act. 

Each year, the HCCS
Principal will achieve
ratings of Proficient
or Distinguished, and 
an average
percentile score of
85% or higher, using
the VAL ED 
leadership evaluation
system, developed at
Vanderbilt University. 

Approved Board of
Regents Charter; NYS
Portal; Applicable
law, rules and 
regulations; NY
Charter Schools Act; 
NY Freedom Met Information Law; NY 
Open Meetings Law;
Federal Individuals 
with Disabilities 
Education Act; Family
Educational Rights
and Privacy Act. 

Val ED Leadership
Evaluation Program 

HCCS's Principal's
overall effectiveness Met score is 4.89. The 
performance level is
Distinguished and
the percentile rank is
99%. 
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Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational No 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 
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2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

Each year, HCCS will
undergo an
independent financial
audit that will result 
in an unqualified
opinion and no major
findings. 

Each year, HCCS will 
operate on a
balanced budget and
maintain a stable 
cash flow. 

External Audit by PKF
O'Connor Davies, LLP 

Monthly internal
financial statements 
and annual external 
audit by PKF
O'Connor Davies. 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 

Met 

Not Met 

FY'19 the BOT 
approved cost cutting
measures to help
maintain a balanced 
budget. The
measures taken to 
reduce the school's 
losses have made a 
significant impact on
the budget. The
school also increased 
their student 
enrollment by 18
students which will 
be reflected in the 
FY'20 financial 
statements. The 
school is expected to 
operate on a
balanced budget
FY'20. 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 07/30/2019 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 8996315 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 479 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 18777 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

546031 

937137 

1483168 

3096 
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 



Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hellenic Classical Charter School 
(the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 

 

 

  

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter School 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, Hellenic 
Classical Charter School adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a change in the manner 
in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial statements. Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 15, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
October 15, 2019 



            

            
            

          

            

          

          
          

       

          

       

       
            

       

Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Statement of Financial Position 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash $ 135,048 
Grants and contracts receivable 85,079 
Other current assets 41,473 
Cash - sinking fund 40,387

 Total Current Assets 301,987 

Property and equipment, net 11,009,746 
Restricted cash 71,040 

$ 11,382,773 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 359,104 
Accounts payable - construction 361,266 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 808,755 
Loan payable 7,326,807 
Line of credit 200,000 
Deferred rent, current portion 216,835

 Total Current Liabilities 9,272,767 

Deferred rent 653,907

 Total Liabilities 9,926,674 

Net Assets 

Without donor restrictions 1,362,385 
With donor restrictions 93,714 

Total Net Assets 1,456,099 

$ 11,382,773 

See notes to financial statements
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 
Universal pre-kindergarten 
Federal grants 
State grants 
Contributions and grants 
Interest and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total Revenue and Support 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$ 7,823,084 
184,273 
169,167 

59,995 
77,680 
56,621 
99,724 

8,470,544 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

$ -

-

-

-

49,192 
-

(99,724) 

(50,532) 

$ 

Total 

7,823,084 
184,273 
169,167 

59,995 
126,872 

56,621 
-

8,420,012 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular education 
Special education 

     Total Program Services 
Supporting Services

  Management and general 
Fundraising 

Total Expenses 

6,582,037 
675,810 

7,257,847 

1,698,916 
23,440 

8,980,203 

-
-

-

-
-

-

6,582,037
675,810

7,257,847 

1,698,916
23,440

8,980,203

 Change in Net Assets (509,659) (50,532) (560,191) 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 1,872,044 144,246 2,016,290 

End of year $ 1,362,385 $ 93,714 $ 1,456,099 

See notes to financial statements

 4 



                                                                      
                                                                                  

                                   

                                     

                                                     

                                                               

                                                                 

                                                     

                                                               

                                                             

                                                                        

                                                                 

                                                             

                                                

                                                                             

                                                                                          

                                                
                                                             

Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs

 Instructional personnel 
Non Instructional personnel 
Administrative staff personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

No. of 
Positions 

63 
4 
8 

75 

Program Services 

Regular Special 
Education Education 

$ 3,801,958 $ 399,329 
89,346 -

- -

3,891,304 399,329 

Total 

$ 4,201,287 
89,346 

-

4,290,633 

Management 
and 

General 

$ 30,650 
121,062 
641,854 

793,566 

Fundraising 

$ 6,144 
-

7,713 

13,857 

Total 

$ 4,238,081

210,408
649,567

5,098,056 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 
Contracted services 
Legal 
Auditing and accounting fees 
Classroom supplies 
Student transportation 
Repairs and maintenance 
Telephone and internet service 
Postage and delivery 
Insurance 
Facility expense 
Dues and subscriptions 
Interest 

Depreciation and amortization 
Miscellaneous 

1,053,342 
150,201 

31,476 
23,819 

139,419 
31,606 
68,299 

8,327 
17,792 
49,314 

512,461 
2,908 

-

536,989 
64,780 

108,234 
15,434 

3,234 
2,447 

14,326 
3,248 
7,018 

856 
1,828 
5,067 

52,657 
299 

-

55,177 
6,656 

1,161,576 
165,635 

34,710 
26,266 

153,745 
34,854 
75,317 

9,183 
19,620 
54,381 

565,118 
3,207 

-

592,166 
71,436 

215,093 
30,671 

6,427 
4,864 

28,470 
6,454 

13,947 
1,700 
3,633 

10,070 
104,645 

594 
355,901 
109,653 

13,228 

3,751 
535 
112 

85 
497 
113 
243 

30 
63 

176 
1,825 

10 
-

1,912 
231 

1,380,420 
196,841 

41,249 
31,215 

182,712 
41,421 
89,507 
10,913 
23,316 
64,627 

671,588 
3,811 

355,901 
703,731 

84,895

 Total Expenses $ 6,582,037 $ 675,810 $ 7,257,847 $ 1,698,916 $ 23,440 $ 8,980,203 

See notes to financial statements
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $ (560,191) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 703,731 
Deferred rent 216,837 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

 Grants and contracts receivable 253,911

 Other current assets 14,972

 Accounts payable and accrued expenses (129,121)

 Accounts payable - construction (100,000)
 Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (225,609)

 Net Cash from Operating Activities 174,530 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of property and equipment (41,408) 
Cash - sinking fund 19,942 

Net Cash from Investing Activities (21,466) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY 
Principal payments on loans (215,807) 

Net Change in Cash (62,743) 

CASH 

Beginning of year 197,791 

End of year $ 135,048 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 355,901 

See notes to financial statements
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Hellenic Classical Charter School (the “School”) is an education corporation that operates as 
a charter school in the borough of Brooklyn, New York City. On February 7, 2005, the Board 
of Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of the State of New York for and on 
behalf of the State Education Department granted the School a charter valid for a term of five 
years and renewable upon expiration. The Board of Regents approved and issued several 
renewals to this Charter expiring June 30, 2024. The School was organized to prepare all 
students intellectually, socially and emotionally, to gain entry and succeed in the best high 
schools in New York City. The School provided education to approximately 480 students in 
grades kindergarten through eighth during the 2018-2019 academic year. 

The School was approved to enter into a three year contract with the New York City 
Department of Education commencing with the 2014-2015 school year to operate a pre-
kindergarten program with an option to renew for two additional years which expired June 30, 
2019. The contract was renewed for an additional year expiring June 30, 2020. This contract 
is separate from the School's charter and is administered from the Department of Education's 
Division of Early Childhood. The pre-kindergarten program provided education to 18 students 
during the 2018-2019 academic year. 

On December 11, 2018, the Board of Regents and the Board of Trustees of the University of 
the State of New York for and on behalf of the State Education Department granted the School 
a second charter, Hellenic Classical Charter School – Staten Island, valid for a term of five 
years and renewable upon expiration. Classes commenced in September 2019 for the 2019-
2020 school year. 

The New York City Department of Education provides free and reduced-price lunches and 
transportation directly to a majority of the School's students. Such costs are not included in 
these financial statements. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state 
and local income taxes under comparable laws. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  
Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Change in Accounting Principle 

On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial 
Statements for Not-for Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the three-
category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) classification of net 
assets into two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions. In addition, 
the new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded disclosures relating to (1) 
the liquidity of financial assets, and (2) expenses both by their natural and functional 
classification in one location in the financial statements. As a result of implementing this 
standard, prior year amounts for unrestricted net assets and temporarily restricted net assets 
were reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor 
restrictions, respectively. 

Net Assets Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general support 
of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at the 
discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees. 

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Cash - Sinking Fund 

The sinking fund was established as a requirement of the mortgage to pay construction related 
costs. The fund was scheduled to be closed out upon the School receiving a certificate of 
occupancy. The School received the certificate of occupancy during December 2018. The 
account was depleted by August 2019 to pay for the remaining construction costs. 

Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for legal 
and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur. 

8 



Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment 

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset ranging from five to thirty years. 
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs 
of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased 
with government funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such 
assets, in which case it is expensed as incurred.  

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Computers and other equipment 3 - 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 years 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly changes 
or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the asset is not 
recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset impairments for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. 

Revenue and Support 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contribution revenue is recognized when a donor makes a gift to the School or a promise to 
make a gift to the School which is, in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of 
cash are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. 
Contributions and grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are 
recorded as net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are 
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs are reported on the statement of financial position as a reduction of the 
carrying amount of the related debt, and amortized on a method that approximates the interest 
method over the life of the associated debt. Amortization of debt issuance costs is included in 
interest expense. 
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have been 
allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic time 
and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no longer 
subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to June 30, 2016. 

Deferred Rent 

The School records its rent in accordance with U.S. GAAP guidance whereby all rental 
payments, including fixed rent increases, are recognized on a straight-line basis as an offset to 
rent expense. The difference between the straight-line rent expense and the required lease 
payments, as well as any unamortized lease incentives, is reflected in deferred rent in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial 
statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date 
is October 15, 2019. 

3. Management’s Plan for Liquidity 

As reported on the balance sheet, the School’s current liabilities exceed current assets as of 
June 30, 2019. Management acknowledges that the cumulative effect of its construction 
expenditures and leasehold improvements in prior reporting periods has impacted the School’s 
liquidity. However, the construction expenditures have ended, and management has continued 
to improve its liquidity through fundraising, increase in enrollment, reduction of expenditures and 
use of a credit line. In addition, as described in Note 7, the School’s loan payable matures on 
January 5, 2020. Management anticipates that they will be able to refinance the loan with their 
existing lender. There can be no assurance as to the availability or terms upon which such 
extension or financing might be available. Management believes that these measures will enable 
the School to satisfy its financial obligations going forward. 

4. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year. 

10 



     

          

   

   

    

      

     

          

          

        

         

     

Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30, 2019: 

Furniture and fixtures $ 714,831 
Computers and other equipment 85,506 
Leasehold improvements 15,467,763 

16,268,100 
Accumulated depreciation

         and amortization (5,258,354) 

$ 11,009,746 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of the 
following at June 30, 2019: 

Financial assets at year end:

   Cash 

Grants and contracts receivable 
Other current assets 

$ 135,048 
85,079 
37,394 

Net assets with donor restrictions 
257,521 
(93,714) 

$ 163,807 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in money market accounts and other liquid 
instruments until it is required for operational use. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, 
the School has a line of credit in the amount of $200,000, and a construction line of credit in the 
amount of $500,000 which it could draw upon as further disclosed in Note 8. 

7. Loan Payable 

On April 5, 2012, the School entered into a leasehold mortgage agreement with Hudson Valley 
National Bank in the amount of up to $8,000,000 in order to finance leasehold improvements 
to the school and refinance all or a portion of a construction loan previously obtained. The 
loan is secured by the building and its contents. The interest rate on the loan is The Wall 
Street Journal’s prime rate plus 1.5%, but in no event less than 6.0%. 

On September 8, 2014, the School converted the construction loan into a mortgage and 
increased the balance to $8,280,000. The loan is secured by the building and its contents. 
Monthly payments of principal and interest commenced in October 2014 based on an 
amortization period of 25 years. Interest on the loan is at 4.5% per annum. The loan matures 
on January 5, 2020. The School is currently in the process of applying for a one year loan 
extension with their current financial institution. A balloon payment of $7,226,084 is due at 
maturity. Interest expense on the loan was $340,151 for the year ended June 30, 3019. 
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

7. Loan Payable (continued) 

The School’s loan has a debt covenant requirement to maintain a minimum of two million 
dollars of net assets without donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2019, net assets without donor 
restrictions was $1,362,385. The School has obtained a waiver from the bank for this 
requirement. 

As of June 30, 2019 the balance of the loan, net of unamortized debt issuance costs of 
$10,411, was $7,326,807. 

8. Line of Credit 

The School has a line of credit of $200,000. Interest is payable monthly at an interest rate of 
prime plus .75%. The interest rate as of June 30, 2019 was 6.25%. The line of credit is 
collateralized with the School’s corporate assets. The line of credit matures on January 5, 
2020 and renews automatically. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2019 is $200,000. 
Interest expense on the line of credit for 2019 was $9,742. The line of credit is cross-
collateralized and cross-default with the loan payable (Note 7). In addition, a material adverse 
change in the School’s financial condition could result in a default on the loan. 

On July 25, 2014, the School entered into a revolving line of credit with the construction 
company in the amount of $500,000 with an interest rate of 5% per annum. As of June 30, 
2019, there was no outstanding balance. 

9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

As of June 30, 2019, net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following 
purposes: 

Classroom Libraries/STEAM $ 35,275 
Air conditioning system 58,439 

$ 93,714 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, net assets were released from donor restrictions by 
incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or by the occurrence of other events 
specified by donors as follows: 

Technology 
History Day Fair/ Ancient Greek Theatre 
Classroom Libraries/STEAM 
Air conditioning system 

$ 21,201 
13,827 
14,696 
50,000 

$ 99,724 
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

10. Employee Benefit Plan 

The School maintains a defined contribution retirement plan qualified under Internal Revenue 
Code 401(k) for the benefit of its eligible employees. Under the Plan the School provides 
matching contributions up to 3% of annual compensation on a discretionary basis. The School 
did not contribute to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

11. Lease Commitment 

On March 14, 2012, the School entered into a thirty-year non-cancelable operating lease for 
the facility space expiring on June 30, 2042. The School has the option to extend the lease 
for ten years and another nine years. Annual lease payments commence at $500,000 per 
annum for the first two years and increase incrementally through the life of the lease. The 
School obtained a credit of $3,900,060 as a result of improvements to the building completed 
in September 2014. The credit will be applied against rent payments due over the first 15 
years of the lease commencing after construction is completed and amortized over 30 years. 
During the year ended June 30, 2019 the School received $260,000 of the credit. The School 
has credits due of $2,908,389 as of June 30, 2019. In addition, in 2017 the School was 
obligated to pay the landlord $600,000 plus interest at 1.75% per annum, to compensate for 
the inconvenience resulting during construction. The balance due as of June 30, 2019 was 
$135,957. Interest expense was $6,008 for the year ended June 30, 2019. In addition, the 
School entered into two leases for copier machines. The leases started in November 2015 for 
a term of 60 months and will expire in October 2020. 

The future minimum lease payments under the facility lease is as follows for the years ending 
June 30: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 

$ 551,250 
578,813 
578,813 
578,813 
607,753 

12,569,563 

$ 15,465,005 

Rent expense is recognized on the straight-line basis. The differences between cash 
payments under the lease agreement and the straight-line rent have been recognized as 
deferred rent in the accompanying statements of financial position from inception of the lease. 
Balance in deferred rent at June 30, 2019 was $870,742. 

Rent expense under the operating lease for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $508,081. The 
copier lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was $22,860. 
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Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

12. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. The School does 
not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution presently exists. 

13. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the School received approximately 
93% of its total revenue and support from the New York City Department of Education. If the 
charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating these revenues, the School’s finances 
could be materially adversely affected. 

14. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims. 

* * * * * 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Hellenic Classical Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 15, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any 
responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

Board of Trustees 
Hellenic Classical Charter School 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
October 15, 2019 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Created: 10/29/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118809692/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118809692/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 

to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118809692/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118809692/JDKdnGTC4H/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 



Hellenic Classical Charter School 

Independent Auditors’ Communication of 
Internal Control Related Matters Identified in the Audit 

June 30, 2019 



  

 

Board of Trustees and Management of
Hellenic Classical Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Hellenic Classical Charter School 
(the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified. 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 

We have other observations and recommendations that are opportunities for strengthening internal 
control and/or operating efficiency, presented in Addendum A to this letter. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 

the Board of Trustees, The New York City Department of Education, The State Education Department 

of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not intended to be and should 

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Harrison, New York 
October 15, 2019 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 

Addendum A 

Other Observations and Recommendations for Strengthening Internal Control and/or
Operating Efficiency 

1. Maintenance of Student Records 

During our test of 40 student files we noted that a substantial portion of student files did 
not contain proof of residency as required by the New York City Department of 
Education. 

In an effort to ensure that student records are complete, we recommend that the 
School’s checklist be utilized to insure that information is complete and up to date for 
each student file. 

2. Updating the Policies and Procedures Manual 

We noted that although the School previously adopted and implemented a formal 
financial policies and procedures manual (the “manual”), there are a number of policies, 
procedures, and thresholds that should be reviewed and updated by management due 
to the opening of a new charter school in Staten Island. This will help improve the 
School’s ability to process, record, summarize, and report financial information. 

We recommend that consideration be given to updating the manual wherein thresholds 
are increased to a more practical range and finance and accounting policies and 
procedures are clearly defined. 

* * * * * 























  

   

               

    

  

    

    

  

         

      

     
           

        
        

        

    

    

    

     

       

  

    

        

       

 

      

          

    

 

 

  

          

         

      

       

        

        

         

           

  

      

        
         

  

   

   

       

         

       

     

     

          

    

 
 

 
 

  

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 
Form 990 (2017) Page 11 

Balance SheetPart X 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 
(A) 

Beginning of year 
(B) 

End of year 

Cash - non-interest-bearing 

Savings and temporary cash investments 

Pledges and grants receivable, net 

Accounts receivable, net 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10c 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 

Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, 

trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. 

Complete Part II of Schedule L m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 
Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section 
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers 
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary 
organizations (see instructions). Complete Part II of Schedule L 

6 

m m m m m m m m m m m m
Notes and loans receivable, net 

Inventories for sale or use 

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 

7 

8 

9 

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m mm m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 

10a 

10b 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or 

other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 

Less: accumulated depreciationb m m m m m m m m m m 
Investments - publicly traded securities 

Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 

Intangible assets 

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m mm m m m m m m m m m 

A
s

s
e

ts
 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Grants payable 

Deferred revenue 

Tax-exempt bond liabilities 

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D m m m m 
Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, 

trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and 

disqualified persons. Complete Part II of Schedule L m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 
m m m m m m m

m m m m m m m m m 
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X 

of Schedule D m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
I

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 

L
ia

b
il

it
ie

s
 

andOrganizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here
complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

Unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted net assets 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 

Total net assets or fund balances 

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

I
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 

Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here 

complete lines 30 through 34. 

and

m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m
m m m m m m m m

m m m m
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m mm m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m mN

e
t 

A
s

s
e

ts
 o

r 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
s

 

180,407. 268,831. 
746,815. 60,329. 
418,232. 368,990. 

15,995. 3,160. 

0. 0. 

0. 0. 
0. 0. 
0. 0. 

14,135. 23,285. 

16,226,692. 
4,617,089. 11,819,699. 11,609,603. 

0. 0. 
0. 0. 
0. 0. 
0. 0. 
0. 0. 

13,195,283. 12,334,198. 
1,937,611. 1,983,855. 

0. 0. 
0. 0. 
0. 0. 
0. 0. 

0. 0. 
7,823,882. 7,680,148. 

0. 0. 

505,340. 653,905. 
10,266,833. 10,317,908. 

X 

2,848,053. 1,872,044. 
80,397. 144,246. 

0. 0. 

2,928,450. 2,016,290. 
13,195,283. 12,334,198. 

Form 990 (2017) 

JSA 

10/10/2019 7:35:24 AM V 17-7.10 2651 
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September 2019 
Reporting Activity 09/01 - 09/30  Page 3 of 4 

COMMERCIAL CHECKING WITH ANALYSIS -  (continued) 

Overdraft and Returned Item Fees 

Total for this period Total year-to-date 

Total Overdraft Fees $0.00 $0.00 

Total Returned Item Fees $0.00 $0.00 



  

September 2019 
Reporting Activity 09/01 - 09/30  Page 4 of 4 
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Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Last updated: 07/18/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Christina Portelos 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Gus Saliba, PKF 0 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with 
Person Address Firm 

1 / 1 



    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

 
 

    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     

 
   

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

6,985,958 860,649 
6,521,605 825,138 

464,353 35,511 
516 49 

- -

OTHER 

-
-
-

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

140,538 988,218 
10,235 448,795 

130,302 539,423 

TOTAL 

8,975,362 
7,805,773 
1,169,589 

-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

District 15 $16,150.00 

Universal PreK $10,000.00 

School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

6,508,492 524,449 

180,000 -
- -
- -
- -

6,688,492 524,449 

-
-
-
-
-

22,538 988,218 

- -
- -
- -
- -

22,538 988,218 

8,043,696 

180,000 

-
-
-

8,223,696 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 311,700 

96,114 -
- -

40,000 -
6,824,606 836,149 

- 24,500 

149,400 -
11,952 -

- -

- -
- -
- -

161,352 24,500 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

6,985,958 860,649 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

22,538 988,218 

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

108,000 -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

10,000 -
118,000 

140,538 988,218 

311,700 

96,114 

-
40,000 

8,671,510 

24,500 

149,400 

11,952 

-

-
-
-

185,852 

108,000 

-
-
-
-
-

10,000 

118,000 

8,975,362 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Superintendent 1.00 123,793 9,975 - 429 18,796 152,993 

Instructional Management 1.00 121,371 9,780 - 420 18,428 150,000 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 1.00 57,238 6,262 - - - 63,500 



  
    

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 6,985,958 860,649 - 140,538 988,218 
Total Expenses 6,521,605 825,138 - 10,235 448,795 

Net Income 464,353 35,511 - 130,302 539,423 
Actual Student Enrollment 516 49 

Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

8,975,362 
7,805,773 
1,169,589 

-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

Chief of Operations 1.00 56,640 4,564 - 196 8,600 

Dir of Finance & Operations 1.00 101,143 8,150 - 350 15,357 

Administrative Staff 4.00 245,867 19,812 - 851 37,331 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 9 706,052 58,543 2,247 98,513 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular - 1,299,100 - - - -
Teachers - SPED - - 344,204 - - -
Substitute Teachers - 99,712 10,908 - - -
Teaching Assistants - 158,761 17,368 - - -
Specialty Teachers - 1,457,392 159,438 - - -
Aides 3.00 49,358 3,977 - 171 7,494 

Therapists & Counselors 2.00 86,065 9,416 - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 5 3,150,388 545,311 171 7,494 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian 1.00 29,635 3,242 - - -
Custodian 2.00 87,387 7,042 - 303 13,268 

Security 2.00 94,751 7,635 - 328 14,386 

Other - - - - - -
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 5 211,773 17,919 631 27,655 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 19 4,068,213 621,773 3,048 133,662 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 345,787 27,863 - 1,197 52,503 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 731,411 58,937 - 2,533 111,054 

Retirement / Pension - - - - -
TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,077,198 86,800 3,730 163,556 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 5,145,411 708,572 6,778 297,218 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit 25,083 2,021 - 87 3,809 

Legal 33,984 2,738 - 118 5,160 

Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services 83,319 6,714 - 289 12,651 

Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 88,534 9,686 - - -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 230,921 21,159 493 21,619 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

70,000 

125,000 

303,861 

865,354 

1,299,100 

344,204 

110,620 

176,129 

1,616,830 

61,000 

95,481 

-
3,703,364 

-
32,878 

108,000 

117,100 

-
257,978 

4,826,696 

427,350 

903,934 

-
1,331,284 

6,157,980 

31,000 

42,000 

-
-
-

102,972 

-
-

98,220 

274,192 



 
     

    
  

   
  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

 
 

    
    

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

498 49 547 

18 18 

-
-

Board Expenses 9,014 986 - - - 10,000 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 40,112 4,388 - - - 44,500 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 46,872 5,128 - - - 52,000 

Supplies & Materials other 4,507 493 - - - 5,000 

Equipment / Furniture 17,567 1,805 - 14 614 20,000 

Telephone 7,913 638 - 27 1,202 9,780 

Technology 44,278 4,129 - 86 3,767 52,260 

Student Testing & Assessment 28,844 3,156 - - - 32,000 

Field Trips 1,352 148 - - - 1,500 

Transportation (student) 40,000 - - - - 40,000 

Student Services - other 11,267 1,233 - - - 12,500 

Office Expense 28,559 2,301 - 99 4,336 35,295 

Staff Development 59,994 6,706 - - - 66,700 

Staff Recruitment - - - - - -
Student Recruitment / Marketing 9,710 782 - 34 1,474 12,000 

School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) 5,000 - - - - 5,000 

Fundraising - - - - - -
Misc. 9,813 624 - 1 61 10,500 

Other 308,283 24,841 - 1,068 46,808 381,000 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 673,086 57,358 1,329 58,263 790,035 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 55,022 4,434 - 191 8,354 68,000 

Janitorial 12,137 978 - 42 1,843 15,000 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 235,659 18,989 - 816 35,781 291,246 

Repairs & Maintenance 39,907 3,216 - 138 6,059 49,320 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security 22,656 1,826 - 78 3,440 28,000 

Utilities 106,807 8,606 - 370 16,217 132,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 472,188 38,049 1,635 71,695 583,566 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - - -
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,521,605 825,138 10,235 448,795 7,805,773 

NET INCOME 464,353 35,511 - 130,302 539,423 1,169,589 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 

District 15 

Universal PreK 

School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,985,958 860,649 - 140,538 988,218 8,975,362 
Total Expenses 6,521,605 825,138 - 10,235 448,795 7,805,773 

Net Income 464,353 35,511 - 130,302 539,423 1,169,589 
Actual Student Enrollment 516 49 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



    
 

  

  

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

School District 5 (Enter Name) -
TOTAL ENROLLMENT 516 49 565 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 13,539 17,564 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 12,639 16,840 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,985,958 860,649 - 140,538 988,218 8,975,362 
Total Expenses 6,521,605 825,138 - 10,235 448,795 7,805,773 

Net Income 464,353 35,511 - 130,302 539,423 1,169,589 
Actual Student Enrollment 516 49 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

 
 

    

  

      
     

     

     

         

          

  

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

498 students 

18 students 

30 students 20-60 minutes category 

$193 per student 

FAMIS/NYSTL 

$500 per SpEd student in all categories 

$500/student for 60% of student enrollment 
$40/student for 60% of student enrollment 

PTA contributions, individuals, corporations and foundations 

Other 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

50% allocated to this budget, remaining to Staten Island location budget 
Principal 
Dean of students 



          

 

 
 

    

    

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

50% allocated to this budget, remaining to Staten Island location budget 

Guidance counselor 

Annual audit 
Legal retainer 

Payroll and benefit administrative services 

Contractual arts. Chess and other 



   
  

   
  

   

     

   
 

     

  

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Textbooks and library books 

Curriculum development supplies 

Student travel to Greece 

Student extra curricular 

Marketing/Advertisements 

Student travel and conferences 

Loan interest, dues, subscriptions, bank fees 

General liability & D&O 

Maintenance supplies 

Includes $22k per month rent concession 

Electric and gas 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



































	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	

	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/12/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Charles 
Capetana
kis 

Harvey
Newman 

Nick 
Leonardo 
s 

Effie 
Lekas 

Grazia 
Svokos 

Nikiforos 
Mathew 
Nmathew 
s@orrick. 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Educatio 
n, 
Financial, 
Facilities 

Educatio 
n Chair 

Financial, 
Facilities 

Educatio 
n 

Educatio 
n 

Financial, 
Facilities 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

5 

5 

5 

5 

1 

5 

Start End Date 
Date of of 
Current Current 
Term Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/01/20
17 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
17 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
17 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
17 

06/30/20
20 

02/01/20
17 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
17 

06/30/20
20 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

12 

9 

11 

12 

12 

5 or less 

1 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

com 

Dean 
Angelako 

7 
s 

8 

Dr. Liana 
Theodora 
tou 

9 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

1a. Are there more than 9 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

Financial, 
Facilities 

Educatio 
n 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

4 

5 

07/01/20
17 

07/01/20
17 

06/30/20 5 or less 20 

06/30/20 5 or less 20 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

8 

0 

0 

8 

12 

12 

2 / 3 



	 	

	Thank you. 
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Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Created: 07/30/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting Yes 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

A. Provide if posted on the https://www.hccs nys.org 

charter school's website a URL 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/12/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

HELLENIC CLASSICAL CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

HCCS is a Title 1 School with a 59% FRPL. 
The school continues to extend their 
outreach by visiting feeder schools and Pre
Kindergarten schools in the community. Each
year new and old members of the school's
alumni volunteer and work with faculty and
administration to disseminate materials such 
as the school brochure, applications,
calendar and contact information. HCCS 
continues to advertise in local newspapers

Econom throughout the year. This marketing initiative
ically helps target and recruit students eligible for
Disadva FRPL, ELL's and Students with Disabilities. 
ntaged The school announces three open house

sessions during the months of December,
February and March. There are multi lingual
staff members present at the open house
events to assist with translations as needed 
regarding but not limited to information
about the school, information on how to 
apply to the school and contact information
for the school for stakeholders to reach out 
to with further questions that are accessible 
to parents. 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School actively
and deliberately continues to recruit, identify
and accept English Language Learners. The
school’s administration and school board 

HCCS will continue to demonstrate their best 
practice efforts to recruit economically
disadvantaged students for 2019 2020. 

1 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

recognizes that this is a challenge especially
when it is competing with District 15.
Because of this and limited space at the
school, HCCS requested for an enrollment
increase. In addition, in its current charter 
term, HCCS added a lottery preference for
English Language Learners and have seen
ELL numbers increase over the last charter 
term. 

In its efforts to increase its ELL population,
HCCS continues to: 
• Backfill. As a result, 3 ELL students were 
accepted and enrolled in October 2018 in
grades Kindergarten,1 & 2.
• Reach out to early childhood centers,
daycares Pre K and Head Start programs.
• HCCS continues to advertise the school in 
local foreign language media (e.g.
newspaper, radio), host targeted
informational sessions for non English
speaking students in multiple languages, and
provide recruitment materials in multiple
languages (i.e. handouts, website) that
highlight unique services offered for ELL
students. English
• HCCS discusses in detail the applicationLangua 
process with the lottery preference ofge
students whose English is their secondLearner 
language during its open house events ands/Multili
private tours.ngual
• In school year 2017 18, HCCS had 4% ELLLearner 
students (22 students) vs District 15’s 7%.s 
• Comparison with neighboring schools:
HCCS’s 5% ELL population to neighboring
schools such as New Voices’ 2% ELL 
population and MS51’s 2% ELL population.
• In school year 2018 19, HCCS’s ELL
percentage increased to 5%.
• In school year 2017 18 a total of 20
students were eligible for the NYSESLAT. 11
of those students scored proficient on the
2018 NYSESLAT (Commanding).
• These 11 students are eligible for 2 3 years
of ELL services. 

Recruitment efforts for ELL’s : 
• For school year 2018 19, 29 incoming
kindergarten student applications indicated
they were English Language Learners.
• Upon acceptance and registration it was
indicated on the Home Language Survey the
27 students were “ELL’s”. 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School will 
continue to actively recruit, identify and
accept English Language Learners. 

2 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

Student 
s with 
Disabilit 
ies 

• In September, after the parent interview
process, our ELL teacher officially identified 7
students as eligible for the NYSITELL.
• 6 out of the 7 students are identified as ELL 
students (one of the students scored
proficient on the NYSITELL, making them
ineligible for services).
• HCCS currently has 26 ELL students for
school year 2018 19. 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School is a 
lottery school with limited space in all grades
however makes every effort during their
application process to identify and recruit
new Students with Disabilities and English
Language Learners. HCCS's SWD percent has
increased over its charter term and during
the current lottery, HCCS added 16 new
students with disabilities bringing their total
number of students to 70 vs 54 from last 
school year. HCCS also increased their
student enrollment by 18 students to create
additional room for students with disabilities 
and English Language Learners. HCCS added
a lottery preference for Students with
Disabilities and a set aside preference for
English Language Learners. HCCS continues
to advertise in local newspapers throughout
the year. This marketing initiative helps
target and recruit students eligible for FRPL,
ELL's and Students with Disabilities. The 
school announces three open house sessions
during the months of December, February
and March. There are multi lingual staff
members present at the open house events
to assist with translations as needed 
regarding but not limited to information
about the school, information on how to 
apply to the school and contact information
for the school for stakeholders to reach out 
to with further questions that are accessible 
to parents. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 

HCCS creates positive family relationships
through their many celebrations throughout
the school year. HCCS is known for their
open door policy where all families feel 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School will 
continue to demonstrate their best practice
efforts to recruit Students with Disabilities for 
2019 2020. 

Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

3 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

comfortable to come in and discuss anythingEconom 
they need with their child's teacher and orically
the administration. HCCS hosts parent andDisadva 
student orientations, offers free meals and ntaged 
snacks through the NYC Food Services, offers
a free after school program for middle school
students and free tutoring for struggling
students. HCCS also offers free tutoring for
specialized high school exams. 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School's 
certified ELL and Special Education teachers
and coordinators continue to work together
to meet the needs of their SWD and ELL 
population. The team receives
comprehensive professional developmentEnglish and training. HCCS is members of the NYCLangua Special Education and English Languagege Learner Collaborative. Teachers receive Learner training in best practices and programs suchs/Multili as Orton Gillingham and Wilson Readingngual Systems. HCCS continues to have strong andLearner effective partnerships with their ELL ands SWD families. The team communicates with 
the families throughout the school year to
ensure students academic achievement. 
HCCS teachers collaborate weekly during
common planning times to develop
curriculum for all learners in the classroom. 

HCCS works collaboratively with the
Committee of Special Education (CSE) to
inform and educate parents about the
services, settings and special program
features available at the school. HCCS has 
developed a strong team of certified Special
Education and ELL teachers who receive 
extensive and comprehensive professional
development and training to meet the needs
of their special education and ELL
population. HCCS continues to be members
of the NYC Special Education and English
Language Learner Collaborative. In
addition,Teachers receive training in best
practices and programs such as Orton

Student Gillingham and Wilson Reading Systems.
s with HCCS continues to have strong and effective
Disabilit partnerships with their ELL and SWD
ies families. The team communicates with the 

families throughout the school year to
ensure students academic achievement. 
HCCS teachers collaborate weekly during
common planning times to develop 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School will 
continue to demonstrate their best practice
efforts to retain economically disadvantaged
students for 2019 2020. 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School will 
continue to demonstrate their best practice
efforts to retain and increase their ELL 
student population for 2019 2020. 

The Hellenic Classical Charter School will 
continue to demonstrate their best practice
efforts to recruit and increase their SWD 
population for 2019 2020. 
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curriculum for all learners in the classroom. 
HCCS offers teachers academic and 
behavioral support. Preventive planning of
disciplinary practices, high quality staff
training and continued professional
development. HCCS has student, family
orientations and many family events. HCCS
has an overall welcoming family oriented
culture that creates a positive environment
to ensure effective learning growth. 

5 / 5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	
	

	

	
	

	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	

	 	
	

	

	

Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 07/12/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

FTE Classroom 
Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

3 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom 
Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18

6/30/19 
6/30/19 

0 3 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

9 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

36 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

9 

9 

0 

0 

0 

9 
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